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May 25, 1912, 9:30 o'clock A.1,

Defendant in court with counsel,
THRECOURT: You may proceed, gentlemen, with the case of

People against Darrow,

GRORG®E 0. MONROT, on the stand for
further dieect examination.
MR FORD: Now,ifyggll I will show you what purports to
be an order of Court drawing a jury on November 20th, 1911,
T ask you ifi that is one of the official records of your
department? A Yes sir,
Q And the signature attached thereto is the signature of
Judge Bordwell® A  Yes sir.
MR FORD: Offered in evidence as People's exhidbit Xo,4.
T showed it to counsel yesterday.
MR ROGTRS: Objected to upon the same grounds that were
urged in support of the objection to a similar document
yesterday, incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, and not
valid upon its face,
MR FORD: Let the record show that is exhibit 4, I file
it for identification,
IH® COURT: Overruled,
MR FORD: Let me read that into the record, will you,
Mf Smith, (Readihg) "in the Superior Court of the State of

California,in and for the county of Los Angeles. Tn the

Matter of drawing a trial jury it is ordered and direc

that a trial jury - be drawn in the courtroom of
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Department 9, of said court,on Saturday the 25 day of
November, 1911, at the hour of 11:30 o'clock in the fore-
noon of said day, and the number of such jurors to be drawn
as aforesaid, is to be designated to be fifty, It is
further directed that this order be filed this day with the
county clerk of said county. Signed Walter Bordwell,
Endorsed 6939,Department 9, People vs J, B, McNamara,
Order of Court drawing jury. Filed November 23,1911,
H/0, Lelande,By George O, Yonroe, Deputy," Will you now
turn to the minutes of November 25th, 1911, for your depart-
ment , department 9 of the Superior Court of this county,and
read to the jury the miautes of that day in reference to
case No, 69327 A The minutes pertaining to the drawing
and pursuant to that order.
MR ROGTRS: The smme objection as made to the order, the

of the ’

form / paper.
THE COURT: Overruled,
MR ROGERS: Fxception, .
A Preceding the minute order is the order just intro-
duced , pebple's exhibit 4, (Reading) Saturday, November
25th, 1911, In open Court, Hon,Walter Bordwell, Judge pre-
siding, the clerk, shetriff énd reporter present, In pur-
suance of the order made, filed and entered on the 25th day
of November, 1911, that a jury should Be drawn, and th%s
being the time set for the drawing of said trial jury,the

clerk in open court in the presence of the Court, proceeded

by order of the Court to draw said trial jury, and afte
' scanned by LAL R LIBRARY
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dulyshaking the trial jury box containing the names of
persons selected by the judges of the Superior Court of Los
Angeles County, State of California, to serve as trial
jurors, regularly drew therefrom fifty slips of paper
containing the names of the following persons'written
thereon, to-wits --

Q Now,I attract -- then follows a list of the fifty
persons drawn? A Yes sir, |
Q Now, T ask you whether or not the following name
appears'theréon, No. 28.
MR ROGERS: I think your Honor please, that the counsel
should offer the document, and»offer the order and let the
order go in for what it is worth.
MR FORD: Tt may be stipulated that the order can be copied,
the entire list of names attached therein, by the reporter,
MR ROGFRS: Yes, _ |

"Fred Anthony, William Bryant, Robt. Theo. Blackney,
J. H.. Blagge, Chas. Wl. Brockman, Geor;g:e Beck, ¥. P. Bald-
esser, Alex, Culver, H. D, Crutcher, Will E. Chapin, Vm.
B. Cullen, Isaac 3. Carter, Geo. Cloots, Chase. G. Davidson,

R, E. Dolly, Elmer E. Elliott, C. R, Freeman Frank E. Green

naue s R it

Geo. H Hampsnlre, James Pay, Frank A. Pulett Raymond

<o TR S

Huston, C. D. Hubbard, c. I. Ijams, Mark G. Jones, A J.

Krueger,Hax Kahn, Geoe. N;’Pockvood Harry J. Yercer,
I ~— R T g e R

Ccarl F. Mesman, Dr. J. H. YMartin, Henry Parlee,

. T Paddock, Thurston H. Pratt, Arthur Rivers, Edwin

H . ’ ’
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Rogers, J . 9 Roth, J. P. Stockdale, Geo. W. Ay15worth,
John G. Staub, Chas. S. Sanderson, A. W. Stewart, Vm. A,
Sackett, Cass Schlweter, W. L. Stewart, Roy B. Sumner, L.
P i . . .
C. Turner, J. W. Van Horne, C. R. Watson and Homer Wil-

liams."
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MR FORD: T will ask you to read -- I just want to ask you
if upon that record, appears, justvso_the jury's attention
can be attracted td it, the name of George N, Lockwood,
1352 Newton street, The guestion is leading but T put it in
that form to save time, A Yes sir, it does.
MR ROGWRS: Pardon me,Judge, To save time wr Fbrd, come
here and let me.show you something.
MR FORD: The name George‘N. Lockwood appears without any
address? A The address is only given in the time book
with the jurors.
Q The name, George N, Lockwood appears in the list of
persons whose names were drawn at that time, Read the rest
of the order, after the names of the persons.
A Following the names of the fifty jurors, immediately
after the drawing was completed, .it was ordered that the
Clerk make a copy. of the list of names of. persons drawn,
as af oresaid, and certify the same as required by law,
stating in his certificate the date of the order and of the
drawing and the number of jurors drawn and the time when
and place where such jurors are raquired to appear, to-wit,
Tuesday the 2sth of November, 1911, at 10 orclock in the
fornoon of said day in the court house of sald Los Angeles-
county, in the courtroom of Department 9 of the Superior
Court of said county,and it is further ordered that a list
of the jurors drawn be certified and delievered to tﬁe

Sheriff of sgid county for service, as required by law,x
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proper proceess,and that the Sheriff make legal sefvice and
due return of his action in the premises, and the list of
names as drawn was duly certified to the Sheriff as ordered
by the Court, Tt was further ordered that the persons whose
names were drawn as aforesaid, appear and attend at this
Court in department 9 thereof, Tuesday the 20th day of
November; 1911, at 9 o'clock of the forenoon of said day.

Q Did you draw the certificate and deliver the same to

the Sheriff as ordered by the Court at that time®? A T did.
9 T show you this document already exhibited to counsel,

I show you what purports to be a certificate of return of a
trial jury for department nine, to which has been attached
what purports to be a return from the Sheriff's office.
Directing your attention to the certificate of drawing,T

ask you if that is the certificate which you drew on that
date® A Yes sir,

Q Did you deliver the same to the Sherife? A T aid.

Q Was it returned to you by the Sheriff? A. It was.

Q And when returhed to you by the Sheriff did those papers.
which purport to be the return of the Sheriff, were those
papers attached® A They were,

Q Did you file the entire document as a record of your
Court ? A T did.

MR FORD: We offer it in evidence as People's emhibit 5,

MR ROGFRS: Ve object to that as irrelevant, iHCOmpetentw

and immaterial; not the best evidence; no foundation lai
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*THE COURT: Objection overruled,

MR ROGERS: Fxception,

MR FORD: This may be deemed copied into the record, as
’read to the jury and copied into the record. in order to
save time, with your permission?

MR ROGERS: Of course, the document, if your Honor please,
contains many notations, notations and corrections, and
erasures, which T have no doubt were made at other times,
For instance, through the name of Lockwood there is drawn a
pencil, through the name of Curley there is drawn a pencil,
After each name there may be a check mark or some word,

and T do not understand that those matters are part of the
d ocument or evidence.

MR FORD: T might state here,that the only purpose for which
it is offered is with its relation to the name of george N,
Lockwood, and I am asking the witness further with regard to
that matter, |

MR ROGFRS: TIf the document shall be filed,T will waive the
readdng, of course,

MR MRD: Tt may be déemed copied into the record,

Q MR TORD: Now, in the certificate, Wr Monroe, T notice
that a pencil mark has been drawn through the name of
"George N. Lockwood", Was that drawn through that name
before or after its return to you on the 258th day of Novem-

ber, 1911? A That was drawn the morning of the 2oth,the

day they were turned into court, in calling the roll,th

scanned by LALAWLIBRARY
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15
were asked if they had any excuses to make then, from’this
list, while the minutes were not written up,T make that
excuse,1f a person is excused, a juror, for defective
hearing, Tstate it here, %excused, hearing", ‘“excused, busi-
ness", whatever it is,

Q& I will direct your attention to the name George N,

Lockwood ,with the pencil mark., Vas that pencil mark drawn

through afterAthe certificate had been returned to you®

A Yes, the Sheriff's return showing --

MR APPFL: Ve move th strike out the answer of the witness,

and we object to the question because the rule is it is

not permissible to contradict or explain a writing of this

kind. You camnot add or subtract from a record made in

Court, This offer is a record and for that reason counsel
offers it, and for no other reason, Tf it is no record,
then he has no right to offer it.

THE COURT: But, he can explain the modifications.

MR APPFL: This is a record and must speak for itself, and
if the witness wants to explain when that line was drawn
over that name, we certainly do object to his undertaking
to explain a document of this kind,

THR COURT: The motion to strike out is denied,and the ob-

jection is overruled,

MR APPFL: We take an exception.

MR FORD: T wish to state, that the only purpose for which

the document is offered is to show that the name of

seanned by LAl A LIBRARY
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George N, Lockwood was drawn on the 25th day of ﬁovember,
1911,as a juror, and that any pencil marks appearing thereon
were made three days subsequent to that date, and that as
it now appears,does not express the true status of affairs
on the 26th day of Novenber, w®eER nor tﬁe true status at
any time until the day the pencil mark vas drawn through it.
MR FORD: Then the name of George N, Lockwood was drawn as
a juror and appeared on the certificate when you sent it
to the Sheriff?
MR APPFL: We object to that on the ground it being not the
best evidence, or examination of that kind.
MR FORD: T withdraw the question, I think counsel is
correct, that would be a question whiéh the record itself
can.demoﬁstrate.

I believe this document has been admitted in evidence,
We offer it in evidences as people's exhibit No, 5.
THE COURT: Tt has been admitted,but hot marked.
MR FORD: Yes sir, and we ask that it be marked as exhibit &
THE COURT:. The reading has been waived. |

MR FORD: Now, T ask you if this document, purported to Be
the Sheriff's return,contained the following iten when it
was handed to you: George N, --- directing your attention -
MR APPTL: Wait a moment, Ve object your ¥onor, to any ex-
planation by the witness of any document coming from the

Sheriff, You cannot contradict a return, that is eleme
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law. Tf he offers this as a return,there is no power on
earth under the law here,that can contradict a return,

MR FORD: T assure counsel T am not trying to contradict it,
T want to show it is in the same state as when it was re-
turned into Court,

MR APPEL: It is presumed to be,

MR FORD: 7T would like to corroborate a presumption,ojce

in a while,

MR APPFL: T object to this man corroborating anything of
that kind, your Honor, whatever speaks for itself needs no
corroboration, ‘

MR FORD: T wish to show it has not been added to since that

time, that it is in exactly the same condition it was in at

‘that time,and T think T have a right to do so,

THE COURT: All right, objection overruled.

MR APPEL: Ve take an exception,

MR FORD: Directing your attentiéh to what purports to be
the Sheriff's return,attached to this document, I attract
your attention to the following entry on the first page of
the return: "George N.'Lockwood“ under the column headed
"names", and in the column headed ."manner of service" --
"Left county year and a half ago," By vhom "W, D, Reynolds"
Those entries were upoﬁ thatJdocument vhen it was filed with
you, vere they? A" Just as they are now,

Q Just as they are now; and it is in the same condition®

A Yes sir,
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MR FOED: Fxhibit 5.
(Document last referred to vas here marked people's

exhibit,5, and is as follows:)
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Sheriff's Office, )
‘ ) ss.
County of Los Angeles. )

I hereby certify, That I received the within and here-
unto annexed vemire for 50 jurors, on the 25th day of
November, A.D., 1911, and by virtue of the same, have sum- |
moned the hereinafter named persons to be and appear at the
time and place therein named to act as term trial jurors.

That such persons were summoned by giving personal
notice to them in writing when such persons could be
found, and when they could not be found by leaving a no-
tice in writing at their respective places of residence with

some person of suitable age; that such service was made at

the time and in the manner particularly set out as fallows,

to-wit:

Names. Manner of Service. By Whom. Date.
1. Anthony, Fred. Pergonal J.S.Sepulveda, Nov.27
- 2. Bryant, William, Personal W:Reynolds, Nov.26

3. Brackney,Robert Theo. Out of State J.A.Cather. Nov.28
4, Iﬂagge, J «H, Left ar Res. J.S.Sepulveda'Nov.27

5e Brockman,Charles W . InRiverside DPam Miller Nov.27

6. Beck,George, Noved to Riv-

erside County.J.Cather No¥.26
7. Galdosser,F.P. Personal. G.VanVliet, "
8. Culver, Alex. . Left at Res. J.S5.Sepulvedalov.2%
9. Crutcher ,H.D, In Riverside

Co. JsACather, Nov.25
1'.Chapin,Will E, No such address J.A.Cather "|
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‘1l.Cullen N Tm.B.,
12.Carter,Isaac S.
13.Clotts,Geo.

14.Davidson,Chas«G.

15.Dolley, R.E,

17.Freeman¢Q&B.,
_fefTROmAN Ve e

18.Green,Frank E.,

19 .Hampshire ,Geo.H,

2Q0.Hay, James,

21.Hilwig,?rank A,
22 .Huston ,Raymond,
23 .Hubbard, C.D,
24, I)ems,C.T.

25.Jones, Mark G.

26.Krueger,Aul. ,

27.Kahn Max,

28.Lockwood, Geo.H.

(ST

Pated at Los Angeles, November 27th, 1911, W.A.Hammel,

16.E1liott, Elmer E.

Personal: Geo.VanVliet,
Personal Geo.VanVliet
Left at Res.J.A.Cather,

Left with A.R. .
YcIntosh, D.Larimer,

Personal D, Larimer,
Personal D. Larimerj

Personal D. Larimer,

Left county W.D.Reynolds, .

Personal W.D.Reyndds

Left with ¥Vrs
Grace Bstman D.Larimer.

Personal W.D.Reynolds,

Personal. A.L."anning,

Personal J.A.Cather,
 Personal J.4.Cather,

Unable to
locate, W.D.Reynolds

Nov.26

4]

"

Nov .26

L

" 28

Nov.26

Personal W.D.Reynolds, Nov .26

Moved from ad-

dress given W.D.Reynolds Nov.26

Left county
year and half
3g0e W.D.Reynolds,

Sheriff, By R. T. Brain, Deputy Sheriff.

Sheriff's Office,

County of Los Angeles.
I hereby certify that I received the withi n and
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unto afid@xed venire for 50 jurors, on the 25th day of

November, A.D., 1911, and by virtue of the same, have

?
surmoned the hereina fter named persons to be =and appear

at the time and place therein named to &t as trerm trial
jurors.

"That such persons Wére surmoned by giving personal
notice to them in writing when such persons could be found,
-and when they could not be found by leaving a notice in
writing at their respective places of residence with some

person of suitable age; that such service was made at the

time and in the manner particularly set out as follows, to-

wit. _
Names. | | Yanner of Service. By Whom.Date.
20 JMercer,Barry J. Left with wife. Dan Miller Nove29
30.Mesman ,Carl F. "~ Personal W.D.Reynolds, Nov.28
3l.Martin,Dr.J.H,, Personal Dan Miller Nov.27
32.Parlee, Henry, Out of city;W.D.Reynolds,
33.Padlock, H.T., Left at Res.T.A.Cather,  Nov.26
34.Pratt,Thurston H. Unable to . o _
locate. Geo.VanCliet, Nov.25
35.Rivers,Arthur,  Deceased | |
36.Rogers,Edwin A, Personal D.Larimer,leov.zs
37.Roth, J.Fv., Personal Geo.VanVliet, "
38.Stockda1e,Jr.P.. Personal W.D.Reynolds, "oan

39. Sylfworth, George W.,Left at res.
with daughter. W.D.Reynolds " 27

40, Staub,Jno.G. Left at Res.J.A.Cather, Nov.
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4l.5anderson,Charles S.

42.5tewart, A.Y.,

43.5ackett, Wm.A,

oo

S, et et S

44.5chuleter,Cass,

45, Stewart ,'VJOLQ N

46.5umer, Roy B.,
47.Turner ,L.C.

48. Van Horne, J.W,

49.Watson, C.R.,

50,Williams Homer,

82

Personal D.Lgrimer Nov.26
Personal, J.A.Cather, Nov .26
Personal D. Larimer, "
Left ar Res.J.A.Cather. "
Left at Res. |
with daughter.W.D.Reynolds "
Left at Reg.J.A.Cather. Nov.25
Personal W.D.Reynolds, Nov.ZS
Moved 6 mos.

8% 0e W.D.Reynolds
Personal Je.A.Cather, Nov.25

Left at Resg.

with wife. Geo.VanVliet, Nov.26.

Dated at Los Angeles, Nov. 28th, 1911. W, A. Hemmel,

sleriff, by R. T. Prain, Deputy Sheriff.

Department No.%.

Superior Court of the State of California In and for the

County of Los Anceles.

State of California,

)

: ) ss.
County of Los Angeles, )

I, H. 7. Lelande, County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of

the Superior Court in and for the County and State afore-

said, do hereby certify that, pursuant to an order made by

the Hon. Walter Bordwell, Judge of the Superior Court

Department No.9, in and for the County and State aforesaid,

directing me to draw from the jury box containing the na
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of persons selected by .the Judges of the Superior Court of
said County to serve as Trial Jurors Fifty slips of paper cor

taining the names of persons to form a Trial Jury to serve

mtil dischaaged, I did in open Court on the 25th day of
November, 1911, a2t the hour of 11.30 o'clock AM. of said
day, after duly shaking the jury box,‘andAin the presence
of the Court draw therefrom 50 slipéof pape; containing
the names of the following persons written thereom, to
serve as said Trial Jury, to-wit:

No. Hame. Residence.

l. Anthony, Fred FHx.business 230 1/3 So. Spring.

2. . Bryant, William, Ex Hearing ,Gardena.

3 Brackney;-Rebert-Thee. 2033 Monticella av.S.Holly'd
4, Blaggs, J;H}' Ex. 332 Security bldg.

5. DPreeclmen;-Charies-Yr 3509 Monon.

6. Beekj-Geerge, : 1§25 élendale ave.

X Baldosser, F.P, 29 Covinﬁ ’

8. Culver, Alexs 321 E. 2nd st.

9 Crutcher, H;D., Glendale.

10, Chapin, Will E, 413 Park View.

11. Cullen, ¥m. BR. Ex Health Glendors

12. Carter, Isaac S. Azusa.

12. Clotts, Geo. Ex Health. 1529 2nd av.
14. Davidson,Chas.é. Fx Business Comptone.
15. Dolley, ReE., 29 Artesia.

16. Flliott, Elmer E, Fx Pusiness. Compton.
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17f
18.
19.
20;
21.
22.
23
24.
25
26.
27.
28.
29.
30;
31.
32f
33
4.
35
36
37.
36.
39:
4@.

41.

Kahn,

- Ex.Hearing

Gzean,—ﬂ:ankhi; A

GeoH.

Freeman, C.R.

Bampshire,
Hay, James. Fx.

Hilwig, Frank A. Hulett Ex. -

Puston, Raymond  Ex. Fearing.

Hubbard, C.D.,

;jams, C;I;
Fonesy—Herk-Gy

Krueger, AJJ.,

Ma#.

Lockwood, Geo. N;

Ex. Atty.
Ex.

Yercer, Harry J.
¥esmen, Carl F. -

Martin, Dr. J.H. -Basbness.

Rogers, Fdwin A. Fx.Health,
Roth, J.F., Ex.Health.

Stocksdale J P, Ex.Bu51ness.

SylfWOr?h,George.W.Ex.on Jgry 1911.

Staub, Jno.G. Ex. Business.

Sanderson,Charles S. 29

Ix.Health of wife.

PadaCKO EXoHealth .

84
Dovwney.
422 E., 68th st.
1874 E. 41st St.
Norwa;k.

133 S, Hudson av.
Pasadena.

1347 ¥Walnut st.

Huntington Park,San
Fernando.

Lankershim.
2095 Proadway.
Palﬁs

1028 Santee,
1350 Newton st.
125 N,S0to st.

Alhambra e

415 Bourt st.

513 Fuclid av.

248 Cahuenga blvrd.

Covina.

1020 E.43rd. (or) 1007
W.364h Place.

Clearwater.

Claremont.

5311 Pasadena ave

220 N.Hancock St.

1835 3rd avé. west of
L,A, limits. '

Thittier.
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42, Stewart, A.W., 2802 Ellendale Place.

43, Sackett, Vm.A, . Artesiae.

44, Sehluebory—Lass. Fx.Hearing. 1446 Malvern A
45. Stewart, W.L, Ex, Brigden Rench,Lamsnda Pk

46; Sumner, Roy B; Ex. Bus. ) 1167 W. 28th St.‘

47. Turner, L;C, Fx. on Juty. 404 Cypress av.,Pasadena

48 . Tan—tosnaydelloy ' - 5115 Pasadena av.

49, Watson, C.H, 'Ex. Health. Alhémhra,le Grand av.

50, Williams, Hober,tEx P.0.r. - Lordsburg.e

. And I do further certify that by the said order of the
said Judge of thee Superior Court, Department No.9, made as
hereinbefore gtated, thé above'némed citizens of said
County are required to be and appear in the Superior
Court, Department No.9., at the Court Room thereof, in the
Coun?y and State aforesaid, on the 28th day of Nov. 1911,
et 9:00 o'clock AN,

Signed this 25th day of Nov. 1911.

| H. J..Lelande, County Clerk

By Geo.0.Monroe,Deputy.
(SEAL.)
(Endorsed:)
6939. Depertment No.9. 1In the Superior

Court of the State of California in znd for the County of
Los Angeles, Certificate of Drawing Trial Jury fpr Dgpart—
ment No.9., Filed this 28 day of Nov. A.D., 1911. H. J:

Lelande, Clerk, By Geo. 02 Monroe, Deputy Clerk. No.ll.
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-7373. People vse. Clarence Darrow. People's exhibit
5 filed May 25 1912. H.T.Lelande, Clerk, By Sherman Smith,

Deputy.

¥
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_an sntirely different person, not under his direction,

- a document with vhich he had anything to do, Now, the ques-

81
MR FORD: Xow, having looked at Txhibit No,K5,the gheriff's
return,and lookiggat thqt pencil mark through the neme of
george N, ILockwood, state vhether or not you drew the pencil
mark on the certificate through the name of george N,lLockwood
before or after you had seen the Sheriff's return?
MR ROGFRS: If &our Honor pleases, I take it,from counsel's
questioning, that he has been refreshing the memory of the
witness. mwe says, "Now,after looking at exhibit No,(5".
The rule of law is,you may refresh your recollection from a
document made by you at the time, or under your direction
at the time, or so close to the time that it is fresh in

your memory, HAX= T do not understand it is permissible for

one witness to refrssh his memory from a document made by

nor

tion, as your Honor will observe, is founded upon that,

wfter looking at this™
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MR FORD: I will withdraw the question in that form, I

am not tryin.g to refresh his recollection.

Q@ Did you look at the sheriff's retumm when it was madé
gnd brought into court? A Yes sir.

Q Did you see tmat entry, "George N. Lockwood, left
county a year and a half ago" in the return? A Yes siry
and for that reason I checked over my original.

0 Al}d so, after looking at it you made tiat pencil mark
through the entry, "George N. Lockwood"? A Yes sir.

"R ROGERS: Wait a minute.

THE COURT: -Strike out the answer.

"R ROGERS:. e object to that as incompetent, irrelevant
and immaterial, leading and suggestive.

THE COURI: It is leading and suggestive, and the objection
is well taken on that ground. Objection sustained.

MR FORD: State when, with reference to your having looked
at this return, state when you drew the pendil mark through
the name of "George N.Lockwood" -- before or zfter.,

MR ROGERS: The same objection.

THE COURT: Objection overruled.

¥R ROGE’RS: Exceptione.

A The morning the sheriff's return was handed to me,

in order to prepare to call the roll, 21l who were not serv-
ed or out of the coﬁnty or deceased, I ran the pencil mark

through it in calling off, from my original, I would skip

those names and not £all them out when calling the roll.
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MR APPEL: pge is giving an explanation. Ee was only asked
if he had -- his anxiety to show why a man mutilated a
record that goes out of court, to show ity but this wit-
ness certainly knows what they want to.qeﬁ at, and they>
ask him what he did and then he goes on =nd states the
reason why he did it and all that sort of thing.
YR FORD: I think a witness is entitled to show vwhy they
did it.
MR APPEL: They are always entitled to show their mi stakes.,

THR COURT: There is no question before the court to be

ruled on. Proceed.

MR FORD: -Now, will you turn to your minutes of November
28th, 1911. A November 28th?

Q Yegs. PFave you any entry on that date in reference to
the case of J. B. McNamara, defendant, upon indictment No.
6939? A Yesg sir. .

Q Wilil ybu read it to the jury please?

MR ROéERS: You offer it in evidence?

MR FOED: I intend to offer all of those propositions read
later on, in evidence, in one bunch. I zm reading it to
save time. A (Reading:) Tuesday, November 28th, 1911l.
In open court, Hon. Walter Bordwell, ‘;rudge Presiding y -
"R ROGERS: “ait & minute. That is not the proper way, if
your Honor please, .to introduce a record. The recofd mu st

be --

R TORD: If they want to be technical, I think, your Ho
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they are correct. Tosave time, I was reading it -- I in-
tend to read the whole record, and all these portions read
@s one offer, but if the objection is raised, I now of fer
the record of November 23th, 1911, the minutes of the court
in department 9 of the Superior Court of the State of Cal-
ifornia, in and for the county of Los Angeles, in evidence,
¥R ROGERS: I dnrt object to the record, excepf I opject
to the statement of the records They do not, as amatter
of fact, contain any order of court or any statement of pro
ceedings upon the ground that they are hearsay and not the
best evidence, incompetente I dontt understand a recital
in the record of matters which the record need not contain
under the law are pfoof of the facts in therecord; that is
my obj ection.

THE COURT: Overruled;

MR ROGERSﬁ Exceptione. |

A (Reading:) Tuesday, November 28th, 1911. In open
court, Hon. ¥lter Bordwell, Judge presiding; the clerk,
sheriff and reporter present. People vs. J.B.MCNamara.
Ggse resumed; all jurors, counel and the defendant, J «Be
McNamara, present. EXamination of Juror Edward Haskell,
resuned, and challenged by the People for ceause. Said
challenge resisted by thedefendant. , Guy L.Rockwell,

and William C. Doaﬁ are sworn to testify on the part of the
people in exgmination of Juror Fdward Bagkell. Further

hearing continued to VYednegday, Novemﬁer 29th, 1911 =t

r
9 AJ%. scanned by LaLALIBRAR




© 0 3 O VUt s W N

N T I T T T - YO G O S G G G SV G WO
oSS SR SO CCR R - S R T S - N . Y R I T =)

| 91
MR FORD: Now, will youread what you have in reference to
the impanelment of the trial jury? A (Reading.) In re
impanelment af a trial juny.l Now, =zt this time, being
the time and order st by the court in its order of Novem-
ber 25th, 1911, for thedrawing of a penel of 50 term
trial jurors, drawn onsaid November 25th, 1911, the sher-
iff's return shows 39 served, and 13 ﬂot served. The 13
not served being Robert Theo. Brackney, Chas. W Erock-
man, George Beck, H. D. Crutcher, Will E. Chapin, Frank
E. Green, Mark G. Jones, Max Kuhn, Geo. N. Lockwood,

Henry Parlee, Thurston H. Pratt, Atthur Rivers and J. V.

Van Horne.
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Of the 39 served, 39 were present.
0 weli, I only want to get that portion showing that
although the name Lockwood had been drawn that he was not
servede.
MR APPEL: Your Honor, it seems to me counsel ought not rto
comment what he wants to show, and all that, after he gets
the evidence in here'befo:e this jury. Ee has that way
of doing that, your Honor. I-don't mean timt he does it
purposely or anything like that, but it seems to be inher-
ent in him to tell this jury just exactly what he wants to
show. Now, he can offer the evidence here, and it is
admitted in evidence, and vwhatever effect that evidence has,
we ought not to tell the jury what, in our opinion, he
wishes. We don't do that. It would be wrong; would be
improper. FHow much more improper is it here for the Dig-
trict Attorney to be arguing his case to the jury on every
item of evidence that goes in. Ve have been watchipg this,
Ve Bumxk didn't want to say anything gout it, but we zve
compelied to do thats Now, we ask, as a matter of fact,
as & matter of courtesy, and as a matter of faimess to
thisdefendant, that he Hesist from doing that.
R TORD: If the court please, I have nodesire to influence
the jury vy anything except evidence. I presume they are
all intelligent meﬁ; that they will look at the record for

themselves and they will not be influenced by nmy comment@

to the witness. I was simply attracting the witness' a
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i _‘ 93
tention to the portion I desired read, and I think the juxy

will understand that my remarks to the witness as to the
portion I desired to have read , are not evidence. I think
that they are men of sufficient intelligence to know that
the record itself, is the only evidence, |

THE COURT: Well, Mr APpel is quite right. It is the duty
of counsel always to refrain from commenting on the evi-

dence while it is being introduced and to argue their case

MR FORD: Dpes the court hold that the remark I made was a
comment?

THE COURT: It hadn't occurred to me until Mr Appel sug-
gested it, that there was any impropriety gbout it, but it
impressed him in the nature of zn argument.

¥R FORD: I would like, your Honor, to have it read.

THE COURT: He suggested itvas an argument.

MF{ FORD: I would like to have it read in order that the
court may determine ﬁ-h ether it is a comm’ent or not.

I will try to refrain from commenting, if that is a com-
ment.

TEE COURT: I dontt think it is necessary to re-read or
take up the time. |

MR FORD: As far as commentin‘g is concerned, I agree with hi
but I don't admit I commented. Mr Hozaroe, have you any

record of when the case of People vs. T. B. ¥cNamara, under

indictment No.6939 terminated? A Yes, I have.

[
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Q Vhat date was tmat? A Friday, December 1lst, 1911.

Q ‘Wj_ll you read the record of tlhmt date? A (Reading-)
Hon. Walter Bordwell, Judge Presiding, Clerk, Sheriff

and reporter present. Case No.6939, People vs. J. B.
McNamara. OCause resumed. The jurors, counsel and the de-
fendant, J E. McNamara, present. By request of the People
and consent of thedefendant, cause ordered continued to

2 P.M. Cause called this 2 P.M. All jurors, counsel and
the defendant, J. B. McNamara, present. 0% applifation of
Le CompteDavis, attorney for the defendant, J. B. McNaniara,
said defendant J. B. McNamara herepby withdrew his plea of
not guilty of the offense charged in seaid indictment,.and
at this time duly‘ interposed his plea of guilty of the
offense charged in said indictment, and cause is continued
by consent of the-defendant, to Friday, December 5th,
1911, at 10 o'clock A.M. for sentenced |

Q TNow, do you know of /your own knowledze, independent of
the record, vwhether or not Juror Robert F. Bain was sworn
and acéepted as a juror in that cagse? A I do.

OR ROGERS: Vait just a moment .

R FORD: Just preliminary to int roducing the record.

THE COURT: Ee€ has answered that he knows.

IR ROGERS: Iwas about to object. I have some difficulty --
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‘wherein‘J. B, McNamara was defendant, and The People of the

. 85
TH? COURT: The next question wait until Mr Rogers gets. a

chance to object, You haven't any objectlion to his stating
vhether he knows or not®

MR ROGFRS: Ko,

MR FORD: T think any witness has a right to state a matter
that is in his own knowledge, independent of the record,

MR ROGFRS: T haven't made any objection. I just wanted to
see vhat the quesfion wa.s .

MR FORD: Wave you a record -- was he sworn,wr Monroe, and
accepted as a juror in that case? |

MR ROGFRSE Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and im-
material, at this time, and no foundation has been laid for
it, ,

THR.COURT:‘ Objection sustained, _

MR FORD: You are the clerk of Department 9 of the Superior
Court of the county of Los Angeles, during the'pendency of
the McNamara case., T will stzte it a little more specifical-

ly. During the pendency of the trial on Indictiment No, 6939,

State of California was plaintiff? A T was.

Q And you administered the cath to the jurors when they
were sworn and accepted? A T did.

Q Did you administer Bhe oath to Robert P, pain,in that

case, t0 try the case?

MR ROGFRE: .Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and im-

material, and no foundation laid at this time,not within
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issues of the indictment. The corpus delecti has not yet
been proven,

THE COURT: Overruled. A T did administer an oath.
WR FORD: Now, have you a record of that transaction®

A T have. -

MR NOGFRS: Well,do you offer the record®

MR FORD: Yes, T will offer the record in order that counsel
may make his objection, _

MR ROGERS; <~ Opjected to as incompetent, irrelevant and
immaterial. Your Honor will see -~ T don't want 10 be tech-
nical, but there is no objectioﬁ to the»statement,"read

the record", which has not been introduced in evidence-
except that it is not proper to read it,

THE COURT: T think you are quite right, Objectionoverruled,
MR ROGFRS: Objected to as inCOmpetent, irrelevant and im-
material,and no foundation laid,at this time,

MR FORD: Will you read the record which has been offdred
in evidence?

MR APPEL: T understand by a decision of fhe Supreme Court,
that you Sgg;allowed to go into transactions concerning
matters which may or may not be admissible in evidence, as
helping the principal transaction, must be gone into first,:
Now,this man Rain ié not mentioned in the indictment,

YR FORD: The Court please, I agree withrcounsei in this much

-= pardon me --
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MR APPFL: Counsel doesn't know whether this mattef will
ever come up. Now,we understand the rule of law that there
must be a prima facie case made firgt, The main case,
before any collateral matters are gone into, That is held
in a great manycases, because the collateral matters become
immaterial, unless a prima facie case is made, tgofar as
the case really is concerned, Now, we are simply saying,to
go into the question of »r Bain at this time is immaterial,
because he is not mentioned in this indictment,
TH® COURT: T thought of that yesterday,lbut T think there
ought to be a statement from the District Attorney,as to
what he expetts to prove.
MR FRFDFRICKS: That is all very true, bPut we have this
witness here on this stand, This is a record. ;t is true
we have stafed we intend to introduce evidence showing that
this defendant bribed Juror Bain, and it would probably be
a little more logical and corroct if ﬁe would introduce the
case showing the evidence that we have against Lockwood,
in the Lockwood case first, but we have this witness on the
stand, he has got the record there, and the record hurts
nobody, one way or the other, ;t simply establishes the
record, Tt is much more convenient than the rule of proof-
the order of proof, is discretionary with the Court, and
certainly is a Big Eonvenience, and hurts no one, to estab-

lish this record; Now,vhile we have this witness on the

stand here, That is the idea of asking the question,
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MR ROGFRS: Tf your MHonor please, if the matter were insub-

s;antiate¢,why we would not make any objection,Time and again
we have pérmitted them to just sgy, "Read the record", and .

so forth, without putting it in in the legal form, but

here is a matter about which your Honor will readily see

there may be some controversy as to its admissibility in

the end, and if with that very easy way -=-

scanned by LAL&EW



© 0 9 S Tt = W N =

DD DD NN DN DD = e e ek el ek ek ped e
B " A - == R e e o B T = ~ B & ) S S o N - N =™

Lot Axgeics County Lay LSRN 33

well, let's do it for convenience sake, that we are all

in the habit of saying, when we want to get something over,
with all due respect in that pgr’cic;ular, I think that that
matter ought to come up at once. Your Honor declined to
pass on it yesterdsy, because the matter was not presented
in such form that your Honor could readily take the whole

matter up. Now, here comes sanother little matter into the

.

record without the question being presented, =nd pretty

soon we will get & record pretty vwell filled up with a lot
of conveniences which may , perchance, bhe prejudicial.

It compels ﬁs to object to each one of these guestions as

it comes up, upon the main ground, because we intend to ob~
ject, of course, to the evidence, when the really substan-
tial part of it is introduced, but we cannot afford to allow
it to go in without objection, and therefore, while I am
desirous of saving time, ve are notsaving time, because

it compels us to obj eét to each quesfion in order to save
our vights.

MR TORD: I want to call the court's sgttention to j'ust one
thing. At the present time we are offering oniy the record,
Te are not offering proof of any other offense a2t the pre-
sent time.s We are of fering proof of the entire record of
the case, and it is of no value whatever, sofar as the gurpr
Bain is com erned,.until' such time as we desire to of fer
pi‘oof of another\ offensey--Proof of another offense at te‘

present time. It is proof we zre reading ofcertain
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technical foundation which must be laid before proof :of
another offense can be introduced, but it is not doing amy
harm 2t the present time whatever, It is not affecting
the minds of the jury. |
THE COURT: It seems that you are -- vhy wouldn't this be
just as good time as another to settle that law? It is
obvious ‘there is & question ofldw to discuss.

MR FTORD: But we are nof zt the present time offering proof
of enother offense, and consequently, it wouggh only a mute
question until t}w.e counsel presents the evidence of another
fffense in court. It is possible that as far as the Lock-
wood offense is concermned, that this wouldbe surplusssage,
I offense
but ,evendoubt that, because thexefemsr, itself don't show
the pendency of this action at this time which we have
a right to show, sand we alsodesire to show, if the court
please -- I might as well state it now, that in the Lock-
wood case, the evidence will show reference to the Juror
Bain, which will be necessary to establish, -~ will consti-
tute p‘art of the proof of the Lockwood case, independently
of any proof that Bain was actually bribed.
R FREDER;CICS: It is really a part of the Lockwood case..
MR ROGERS: Well, the matter of order of proof, of course,
is in the court'd discretion.
THE COURT: I don'1-; want to pass vpon & mute question.
x;rnen this question comes up I want it to be al'ive. P

¥R ROGERS: All I want to do is expeditiously to save my
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point, it occurs to me I should make my objection to save
the substantial point when it comes up.

MR FREDERICKS: Counsel should meke objection, and I

think it ougbt to be overruled.,

THE COURT: I think you better follow that course, aznd
when the. real question comes up, take it up and dispose of
it.

MR ROGERS: Will you stipulate thatall matters of this

sort that we may have &n objection to as incompetent, ir-
relevant end immaterial and no founda’;ion lazid at this time,
in addition to theg eneral objection which we vill present
laster when the substantial matter comes upe.

¥R FORD: I think the counsel will have & right to mo‘ve to
strike out and argue it independently.

YR APPEL: If our rights can he preserved right along, that
whafever we object to here now, may be deemed as if we ob-
jected to it at that time, so we may not fompget. Your
Honort's ruling -at that time may be considered made and all
those matters, if they were repeatéd or gone over again, =
we Iﬁay not be bound by'the fact that we didn't move to
strike out &fter your Honor's ruling, if your Honor should
rule in ourfavor.

MR FREDERICKS: On the principle tmlmt we will introduce
evidence of other of fenses, ve will stipulate that un-til
the matter is finally passed on , that counel will not

lose any rights to object or move tostrike oute

scanned by sl LIBRARY




© 00 =01 > Tt s 0 DD M

M OO DN DN DN D — = e B = e e e e
e R I = = T S T = S ST S U T S YO SO, =

S 102
THE COURT: I think counsel is entitled to timty When evi-
dence comes in out of order. All right, that disposes of

it, Proceed.
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MR FORD: The record of that date then is admitted in evi-

dence, T understand?

TH® COURT: Yes.

YR FORD: Will you read the record of that date to the jury,

Mr Monroe? A (Reading) "Wednesday, November 8th, 1911,
In open Court, Hon., Valter Bordwell,Judge presiding, The
clerk,sheriff and reporter present, Case No,6939, People
against J. B. McNamara, cause resumed, All jurors, c0unsel,
and the defendant J.B.McNamara present., By request of Jurbrs
William T, Clark, ahd Samuel Mendenhall, and by consent of
counsel, gnd byvorder of Court, ihe said Juror William F,
Clark is excused on account of hig health and Juror gam
Mendenhall is excused on account of the health of his aged
mother; and there heing three jurors passed by counsel for
cause and peremptorv,and on order of Court the following
jurors were sworn to try the case, to-wit: Ryron Lisk,

T, D. Green, and Robert T, Bain, " |

8 Continue reading the full minutes®

Q That is all T care for, unless counsel desires we read
ihe full record, | |
MR ROGFRS: I don't know vwhat is in it. Let's see,
(After examining) No, it can be referred to as read.

THE COURT: Ybu heard X the reading of the rest of the
record? .

MR ROGFRS: Yes.

THE COURT: Then it will be extended into the stenograph

report in full,
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 FNine of said Court on Wensday the 8th day of November,
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"By order of the Court the Clerk proceeded to draw from the
Jury Box the names of nine persons to fill the‘ju;y and the
following named persons beindg drawn to-wit, Wm. R. Beards-
ley, ¥ W, Bennett,}Henry G. Burbank, Brewster C. Kenyon,
Geo. Green, Edward H. Royce, John S, Redfern, W. M. Bryte,
and Clark McLain, who were sworn as to their qualifications.
Juror Vm. R.'Beardsley is excused on account of defectibve
hearing; Juror F. W. Bennett is excused on account of not
being on the assessment Roll; Juror ’Edward H. Royce is

excused on account of not believing in Capitol Punishment.

| By order of the Court the Clerk proceeded to draw from the

Jury Box the names of four persons to fill the jury, and
the following named persons being drawn to-wit: W. E.
Henry, Chatles Roth, Beverly Crockett and Howard S.
Sweeting, who were sworn as to their qualifications.
Juror W. E. Henry was excused on account §f not believing
in Capitol Punishment; Juror Geo. Green was excused for
cause on the part of Defendant. By order of the Court

the Clerk proceeded to draw from the Jury Box the name of

‘one person to fill the Jury and the following named person

being drawn, to-wit, J.B.Sexton, who was sworn as to his
qualifications. FExamination continued to Thursday, Nov.
9, 1911, at 16 AL

Re Drawing of Trial Jury. It is ordered and directed

that a8 Trial Jury be dravm in the court room of Departmen
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1911, at the hour of 9 o'clock in the forenoon of said day;

- and the number of said jury to be drawn: as aforesaid, is

ordered and designated to be forty. It is further directed
that this order be filed this day with the County Clerk of
said County. Walter Bordwell, Judgee.

In pursuance of the order made, filed and entered on the
8th day of Névember, 1911, that a trial jury should be
drawn, and this being the time set for the d rawing
of said trial jury, the clerk, in open court, in presence
of the court, proceeded, by order of the court, to draw
said trial jury; and after duly shaking the trial jury box
containing the names of persons selected by the judges of
the superior court of Los Angeles County, State of Cal-
ifornia, to serve as trial jurors, regularly drew there-
from forty Blips of paper containing the names of the
following persons written thereon, to-wit. Zdwin M.
Atkinson, Frank C. Adamson, Luke Barton, Nathan P; Bailey,
James E. Baker, J. J. Burr, Willett Brumner, R. D. Bronson,
Geo. J; Birkel, J. M. Brooks, D. M. Cowan, James E%.Crosby;
John I. Dillon, Clarence Drown, John W. Fisk, Vm. A. Hunter,

Henderson Hood, Joseph Hill, ¥. D, Jones, L. W. Kindman,
Taylor Mendenthal, N. O, P. ¥McComb, E. Nichols, George
Phillips, Squire Gooch, T. J. Green, A, Bribling, W. C;

Thomas, B. L. Vickrey, C. E, Stone, Charles H. Schwam,

e,

Jrank R. Smith, George . Scheaff, Valter J. Wrenn, Geo

W. Walker, Fred ¥, Webb, W. M. Warren, John T. Wilson,

Sy,
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Frank G. Wride and W. W. Weller. Immediately after thé
drawing was completed, it was ordered that the clerk make a
copy of the list of names of persons drawn as aforesaid,

and certify the same as reqﬁired by law, stating in his
certificate the date of the order and of the drawing, and
the number of the jurors drawn, and the time when and place
vhere such jurors are required to appear, to-wit, Friday,
the 10th day of November, 1911, at ten o'clock in the fore-
noon of said day in the court house of =mid Los Angeles
County, in the court room of Department Nine of the Superior
Court of said county; and it is further ordered that the
list of the jurors dramn be certified and delivered to

the sheriff of said county for service, as required by law,
by pfoper process, and that the-sheriff make legal service
and due return of his &tion in the premises, and the list
of names as drawn was duly certified to the sheriff as order
ed by the court. It was further ordered that the persons
whose names were drawvn, as aforesaid, apper and attend at
this court in Department Nine theréofk on Friday the 10
day of November, 1911, at 9 o'clock of the forenoon of éaid

day.
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MR ROGFRS: Yes.

| 107
MR FORD: Now,at this time, in order that counsel may save
their objections to the testimony, I offer in evddence all
the record of Department 9! which has been read by tke
witness and read to the jury, as an exhibit on behalf of
the people,
MR ROGWRS: T make the objection to it -- T make the same
oyjection I made as T went along.
TH® COURT: The same 6bjection as heretofore made to the

offer of the different portions of the record?

TH® COURT: The objection is overruled.
Q By MR FORD: Now, with reference to the record, itgelf,
is this record in use in Department 9?7 A No sir,

MR FORD: T guess there will be no objection then to leaving
it here with the court, although we have no .. right to do it|
THT COURT: TFor the purpose of reference?

MR FORD: For the parpase of referencé, and in order that
the jury may be able to look at the actual record if they
desire‘tﬁ do s0 at any time.

TH® COURT: There will be n6 difficulty about that, it is
all one Court,

VR TORD: Mr Monroe, this minute record, concerning which yo
have testified, and portions concerning which you have tes-
tified, was made ”either by you or under your supervision?®

A ves sir.

Q And corrected by you at all times® A Yes sir.
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Q And independently of the record do you remember that
the case of The People of the State of California vs
J. B, McNamara,on Tndictment No,6 6939, was on trial during
the dates indicated by the recdrd” A Yes sir,
Q And recites the facts as you remember them correctly®
A They'do.

YR ¥ORD: That ds all,

CROSS-FXAMINATION
MR ROGFRS: Mr Wonroe, will you turn to thatpart of the
record which refers to the return or the cerﬁificate of the
panel that was said to come in on the morning of November
26th? A (wWitness does s0.)
Q T call your attention to page 293, A I have not got
it vet.
Q  Yes, you havé. You have it right in front of you,
A were is November 2bth.‘
Q That is what I had right here, T call your attention to
page 293 of the book., You observe,do you, that the name of
george N. Lockwood vas recited among those vho were not
served and vho were not present? A Yes sir.
Q@ Do you know who put thatblue pencil mark in your record?
A T did.
4  Vhen? A A few days ago vwhen T was asked to testify.

Q Tor vhat purpose did you put it there? A To bring

it clear, to find it without having to read it all over,
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9 Yhy did you,in the court records, why did you under=-
score the official records in that fashion? A Simply’
underiined that T might bring it out, that I may see it

with regard to it,and not read over all the record,
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Q@ You have an idea you have a right? A That is erasable
and sim_ply put there for convenience at the time,

Q@ At the same time did you make this pencil memorandum
that was referred to yesterday vwhere one name vas strdcken
out in pencil and snother one written in in vencil?

A That correction I made.

Q When? A At the time the minutes were approved, ut
the ‘time they were read back and verified from the sheriff's
return. |

@ Read back from the sheriff's return? A Yes sir.

Q  Have you gone over those records, comparing them with
the sheriff's returns, since called as a witness? A DNo sir
Q@ ©Now, you spoke of the record of indictment No.6939,
and at the tiine you gave the record concerning many other
indictments, 6933 to -- A 6936, I think.

Q -- 6936 to 69-- A -- 6955, inclusive.

Q@ Well, those indictments weré each for different of-
fenses, were they not, different charges? A DNo sir.

One was.

Q Have you got those indictments? A They are here at
the desk.

@ Let me have them, please.

¥R FORD: They were not offered in evidence. {(Witness
produc es docﬁments.)

¥R ROGERS: You produce them, do you, Mr Fonroe? A VYesysir

€

Q Now, are these the indictments referred to in that
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por;ion of the record vhich youread yesterday? A They
eree

MR ROGERS: I offer those in evidence,

MR FREDERICKS: They are obj ected to as incompetent, ir-
relevant and immaterial. ‘ |
THE COURT: Objection overruled. A I may sgy that the

one, 6939 is not there.

H

MR ROGERS: I understand that, but I have here indictment

No.6936, '37, '38 -- you say '39 is at thedesk -- A Yes

sir. '

Q 6940, '41, '42, '43, '44, '45, '46, '47, '48, '49,

'50, 151, '52, '53, '54. and '55. |

Mﬁ TORD: If the-courf please,'i would desigeto particu-

lzrly make an objection, I think, to a portion of these.

I submit, indictment No.6555 to the court, and object

to its introduction on thé‘ground.that it doew not relate,

to and is not pertinent to any issuves involved in this caée,
et the present time, and is not cross-cxamination.

VR FOGERS: The record of its filing et the time 6939 was

filed is already in and on the part of the peoplé, and intro

duced, gnd we have a right of making a recorg of it.

MR FORD: It is not a matter of importance. I don't care

one vay or the other, Let it go.

TEE COURT; The objection is withdrawn.

MR ROGERS: I do notcare to read all of those,‘of course,

but possibly I can reach an understanding of their meani
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Would it be sufficient to say that each one of‘these indict~
ments is a separate charge of murder aainst J.B.Mc-
Namara, among others, and that the only difference bLe-
tween these indictments except as to 6955, these indictments
from 6936 to 6954, the only difference Bétween them and
the indictment 693? is that it charges the murder of a dif-
ferent person?
MR FREDERICKS: I think timt is correct.
MR ROGERS: And on thesame day.
MR FREDERICKS: And on the same day. There may be some,
one or two in there that do not.
THE COURT: The reading will be waived, then.
MR FREDFRICKS: But there is enough of them that do.
THE COURT: The reading is waived, Captain Fredericks?
¥R FREDERICKS: fes, your Honor.
THE COURT: Do you want these documents extended into the

record?

MR ROGERS: I do not need them, no sir. And with respect

to 6955, that is an indictment which reads as follows:
it being different from the others: "In the Superior Court
of the State of California, in and for the Coﬁnty of Los
Angeles. The ?eople of the State of California, Plaintiff,
vs; 0. E. McManigal, J. J. McNamara, John Doe, Richard
Roe, John Styles and Jene Doe, defendants. Indictmente.
The grand jury of Los ANlgeles COunty, in the neme and by .

the authority of the people of the State of California,
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accuse 0. F. McManigal, J. J. McNamara, John Doe, Richard

Roe, John Styles and Jane Doe,
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whose true nameg are to the Grand Jurors aforesaid unknown,

of the crime of maliciously dépositing and exploding and
attempting to explode, dynamite, nitro-glycerine, nitro-
gelatin, énd other chemical compounds énd explosives, with
intent to injure and destroy buildings, and to injure,
intimidate and terrify human beings, a felony, committed as
follows: "

MR ERWD“RICKS‘ We stipulate counsel can state it,

MR ROGFRS: T couldn't state it much better than you do, it
is pretty well drawn, (Reading)'heretofore,to-wit: On the
25th day of . Decéﬁber,lQlO, at and in the county of Los
Angeles, state of California, and before the finding of

this indictment, the said 0, ¥, McManigal, J. J. McNamara,
John Doe, Richard Roe, John Stiles and Jane: Doe,did then
and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniouwsly and maliciously
deposit, attempt to explode, and explode at, in and under
and near the building, office and fouhdry of the Llewellyn
Iron Works, a corporate body, at and near the corner of Main
street and Redondo street, in the city of Los Angeles,
county of jos Angeles, state of california, dynamite, nitro-
glycerine, niitro-gelatin, and other chemical compounds and
explosives, with the intent then and there and thereby to
injure and destroy said building, office and foundry of the
said Llewellyn Tron Vorks, and with the intent then and there

and thereby to injure,- intimidate and terrify certain hum?n

beings,to-wit: Reese Lleweilyn, John Llewellyn, William
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Llewellyn, David ®, Llewellyn, VWaller Taylor, Spriég Harwood,
and the stockholders, proprietors, directors and employes
of said Llewellyn Tron Works,in the said building, office
and foundry; that said building, office~and foundry was,
then and there, a place where human beings usually inhabited,
assembled, frequented, passed and repassed. Contrary to
the form, force and effect of the statute in said cases
made.and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the
pPeople of the State of palifornia. J. D, Frédericks,
District Attorney in and for the County of Los Angeles,
State of California. Witnesses examined by the Grand Jury,
J. P, Towlen, William Cahill, R, Llewellyn, 0. ®, McManigall
Tndorsed: "Original. Department 9, 6955, -0 the superior
Court, of the State of california, in and for the County of
Los Angeles. The People of the State of California,Plaintiff]
vs 0, ®, McManigal, J, J. McNamara, John Doe, Richard Roe,
John Stiles and Tane Doe, Defendants..Indictment; A true
piil., J, @, Carr, Foreman of Grand Jury, Presented by the
foreman of the Grand Jury,in the presence of the Grand Jury,
in Open Superior Court of the State of California, within
and for the county of Los Angeles, and filed as record in
said Court,this 5 day of “fay, 1911, ¥, J. Ielande, Clerk,
By Geo. 0. Monroe, Deputy Clerk, J.D,Fredericks, District
Attorney. " ' '
5  Now,at the time that the trial of €939 was going on,is

there any record of what was done with respect to these otk
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charges of murder, 16 of them, and the one which T have just

read to you, of detrdying the building®

MR FRDFRICKS: We object to that question,unless it is
divided., We have no objection to the question . as to what
was done with the murder charges against J . B.McNamara,
We may wish to make an objection to the other, ’

MR ROGTRS: T will .sepatrate it then, if you wish me to,

0  Vhat was the condition, so far as the record shows,

of those 18 charges of murder against J, B. McNamara,at
the same time that the trial ofi the one charge was going on?
A All of those cases were‘filed by the Grand Jury, one
case, the one that the District Attorne& selected, came

to trial; the others were continued to be set on motion.

9
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Q Vhat date vere they continued to be set on? A They
never reached my department. The register of zctions, I
think will show the only one reached my department was the
one that came to trial. |

Q@ The other cases were pending, that is, they were in

existence, they were pending ready to be brought up on

motion? A At this time Ivwas clerk of the pregiding judge,

the grand jury mede the report and I filed them; at the
time the case become at issue, I was then =zcting for Judge
Bordwell, who was the trial judge; that one case, 6939,
came on regularly for trial and the others were continued,
as I think the r egister of zctionsg will show, to be reset
or to be reset on motion; simply continued indefinitely.

Q Wat became of 6955, that is the one indictment which
I read in full, the otﬁers being charges of murder?

MR FREDERICKS: We ohject to that on the gfound it is not
crogs-examination; incompetent, irrelvant and immaterial,
a charge mgainst another man.

MR ROG.ERS: It is merely in response to their original of-
fer, '

IR FREDERICKS: No. It just hapvened to be in there.
There might have been a dozen other cases in there on the
same day sgainst other people. Thisg is & charge ageainst
}McHanigal for blowing up the Llewellyn Iron Works. Ve
think it is particularly immaterial. o

THE COURT: It would appar to be immaterial.
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MR ROGERS: Meeely in reply to vhat .they brought out, they
had 6955 in their record, and I am showing what has hap-
pened t9 it.
MR TORD: We have a box full of papers here, and besides
we didn't offer, and it is not in evidence; we didn't offer
ite ‘
MR ROGERS: You offered the record of its being found and
if they brought the record in of its being or having been
filed, we have a right to show what became of it.
¥R FORD: I do not think so. I think it is immaterial, even
if we did of fer the record, it is kmmaterial if we did of-
fer it.
THE COURT: Vherein is it material?
MR ROGERS: Your Honor, the materiality of it will appear.
MR FREDERICKS: I suppose McManigal will he a witness here.
THE COURT: Counsel has stated its mgter;‘.ality will spppear,
I think, on that statement, it can: go in. |
MR FREDERICKS: e withdraw the objection. Ve dontt care
enough{ ahbout ii; to talk about it.: . |
¥R ROGERS: Them don't talk about it.
¥R FREDERICKS: Ve won'te.
MR ROGERS: W at become of 69557 A Having vaived 60 days'
time for triai, it remained in thesame condition as the
others, until Fridéy, Décember 1st, 1911, when the record
shows =-- shall I read that?

Q Yes, please. I o fer it in evidence.
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MR FQRD: Just a moment. A Change of plea.
R FORD: All right. Read it. A (Reading.) "Friday,
;ecember lst, 1911l. In open court, Hon. Walter Bordwell,
Judge presiding, clerk,‘sheriff and reporter present.
Case N0.6955, ;eople vse J. J. McNamaras On motion of Le
Gompte Davié, Attorney for the Defendant, J.JE. ¥McNamara,
said defendant granted leave to withdraw his plea of not
guilty of the offense insaid indictment, and at this time,
duly interposes his plea of guilty of the offense charged
in said indictment, and cause is continued by consent of
defendant to Friday, December 5, 1911, at 10 otclock A.M.
for sentences " Then, "Friday;llbcember 5, commences
right here.
MR FREDFRICKS: That was J. J. McNamara, you just read;
itwasn't MéManigal? A Yes, »
MR ROGERS: These have been of fered as defendant's exhibit.
THE CLERK: As one exhibit?
MR ROGERS: Yes sir, with the different numerals attached
to each one. Are you numbering the prosecution's erhibits?
TEE CLERK: Yeés sir. ,
¥R TOGERS: Well, then, we will take Al, A2, A3, A4, with
the court's pexmission.
THE COURT: A1l right.

(Documents last weferred to were received in evidence

and marked Defendant's exhibits Al to Al9, inclusive, )
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120 |
Q By MR ROGFRS: T call your attention to people;s exhibit
5, which purports to be a sheriff's return., Would you say
that that was in exactly that condition, so far as you ob-
served it, as it was when you received it from the Sheriff?
A (r1fter examining) Other4than being attached to my
original order.
Q Tt was not attached when you first saw it? A They
were presented together, and I attached them.
Q- And you have a recollection of the circumstances of the
return? A T do,
Q Héve yvou a memorandum of it which would tell you any-
thing concerning it? A Oﬁiy the minutes on the date this
was returned, showing who were present and vwho were not
present,
Q  VWell,now, it is dated November 27, Vhen did you get it?
A On the filing mark on the original will show, on Novem-
ber 26th I received it.
Q And what time was that? A Let me see vwhen that was
returnable, at 9 or --
Q Yes sir, 9 o'cldck._ A 9 otclock. Then T must have receilv
ed this elther before 9 or on the 27th, the day before.
9 Tsn't it your recollection, this being dated the 27th,
és you will observe, fy the Sheriff or by the under-sheriff,
who signs it, isn't it your recollection that you recelved

it on the 27th? A ©No,T cannot state positively, Tt may be

T received it in the afternoon of the 27th,

scanned by Lol LIBRARY



O 00 Sa S Tl R W DN e

SR T T N N S R N S S Sy g S G \
S S R BN R 85 o e &g R EREB

121
Q And that at that time contained the statement which you

have spoken of here, under the head "™anner of service",
"George N, Loék left county a year and a half ago,
W. D. Reynolds" Ts that‘so? A At the time T received it?
Q Yes, A Tt was just as it is now.
Q Have you any recollection as to who personally presented
this document to you? A Way ; see what number is on the
outsige? |
Q ves sir. A T think Unde® Sheriff Brain presented fhat
to me, e mesented most of them, the first one was given
were by wr Rrain, I remember that distinctly,.the others
I cannot; but, either Mr Manning or the Under Sheriff,
Q That is Mr Rrain? A  Mr Brain, vho would deliver them
at the desk,
TH™ COURT: Bearing in mind the former admonition,
gentlemen of the jury, we vill take a recess for five
minutes,

(After recess, )(Jury return into courtroom, )
¥R ROGTRS: Mr Monroe, referring now to the subsequent
proceedings, after those which you have read in evidence, in
the case of J. B. YcNamara, 6939, will you proceed from the
place where you left off,and T will introduce the rest of
that. _
MR FTORD: We object to that on the ground it isn't cross-

examination; irrelevant and immaterial. If counsel has any

matters by way of defense,they can call Mr Monroe as the
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witness, at the proper time,
THE COURT: Read that question,again, (Last question read
by the reporter,)
MR FCRD: Objected to upon the ground it is not cross-
examination. Counsel can recall Mr Wonroe, H& is in Court.
TH® COURT: You introduced part of the record, We has a
right to introduce the rest of it,and find out whether it
is material or not.
MR FRYDPRICKS: T don't know what the question means,
maybe the witness does.
MR ROGFRS: Well, they carried the record up to a certain
point, and T am carrying it on from that point to its final
completion,
MR FRTDFRICKS: . We carried'it up to vhere these men plead
guilty,and you are going on with it?
MR ROGFRS: Going on,

MR FRVWDFRICKS: Go ahead.

THT COURT: Objection withdrawn,

A (Rezding) "Tuesday, December 5th, 1911, In open Court,
Mon. Walter Bordwell, Judge presiding; Clerk,Sheriff and
reporterprepent, Case NO, 6939. people vs J. B. YMcNamara.
This being the time set for passing septence upon the defend-
ant; the‘People being represented in Court by District
Attorney J, D, Fredéricks; Assistant District Attorney,

W. J. Ford, and Deputy District Attorney G.Ray Horton, and

the defendant present in court with his aitorneys,Clarenc
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Darrow, LeCompte Davis, Joseph Scott,and Cyrus McNﬁft, the

defendant states his true name to be John Barnabas McNamara.

The defendant was then asked if he had any cause to show why

judgment should not be pronounced against him, to which he

replied that he had none, and no sufficient cause belng shown
or appearing to the Court, thereupon the Court rendered its

judgment. For record and order see Judgment book No,6,

page 27,

MR ROGFRS: T would 1like that judgment book,

MR FREDFRICKS: Before we stipulate what it was,let the Clerk
testify what it was if he recollects,

MR ROGTRS: You remember what it was? A Yes sir, but the

book is right here,

Q All right, let's have it, Page 27,book 6,

A That is Department 11, T want No, 12,

MR FREDFRICKS: ILet him testify what it was, We won't make

any point on it. |

MR ROGFRS: Can you remember what it was? A Yes sir,

Q Please state it. A ¥e was sentenced to San Quentin for

the term of his natural life.

Q‘ Now will you take case 6955, vhich was called to your
attention at the time of introducing the record of its
filing, and T will ask you to taﬁe the record of that case,

to its final judgmenf.
MR FRFDVRICKS: TIs that J. J. “McNamara®
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YR FREDVRICKS: If he knows he can state,so far as we are

concerned, A The order of sentence is practically

I

identical, \\\

MR ROGFRS: T offer in svidence 6955,in the same uéy.

A That is Tuesday, December 5th, 1911,In open Court,¥on,
Valter Bordwell,Judge presiding, The clerk, sheriff and
reporter present, Case No, 6965, ©People vs J. J. YMcNamara,
Tis being the date set for passing sentence upon the defend-
ant, the People being present in Court dby Disfrict Attérney
J. D, Fredericks, Assigtant pistrict Attorney W, J. Ford,and
Deputy District Attorney G, Ray Horton; the defendant being
present in Court with his attorneys, Clarence §, Darrow,
LeCompte Davis, Joseph Scott and Cyrus McNutt, the defendant
stated his true name to be John Joseph McNamara, The defend-
ant was then asked if he had any legal cause t0 show why
judgment should not be pronounced againsthim, to which he
replied that he had none, and no sufficient cause being shown
or appearing to the Court, thereupon the Court rendered its
judgment, For order and record see Tudgemin --

MR ROGERS: The Judgment is contained in judgment book No, 6,
at page 27? A Yes sir.

Q That book you have not here? A Tt is in the adjoining
room,

Q Will you state what that judgment was? A The sentence

24

of that defendant was fifteen years in San Quentin, T am not

positive whether it was Folsom or San Quentin,but I thin
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San Quentin,

MR FORD. :

o

Q Let's get that judgment hook, Fifteen years*

9

iy recollection is the same, 15 years,
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¥R ROGERS:" Do you remember whether 'anythin.g was done --
has been done up to the present time with the cases,

6936 to 6954, inclusive, except 6939. Have they ever
passed judgment or been dismissed? A I dont't know anything
gbout those cases. They haven't reasched my department.

Q@ You can't testify either from an observation of the re-

cords, or from your own knowledge? A No sir, without con-

sulting the register of «ctions.

MR ROGERS: That is all.

MR FORD: You testified, I believe, tmt the return of the
certificate on November 28th, bears the file mark of Novem=-
ver 28th? A Yes sir. |
Q You have no personal recollection, independent of that
file mark, as to whether itvas returned that day or the day
before? A Ny -- must have been retume’d tmt day, for

my custom is to file =zt once, personallye.

\Q And you have no recollection in dependent of your filing

marks? A No, I have not“.
¥R FORD: Thgt ig all.

GEORGE HA. LOCKWOOD, a witness called on be-
half of the prosecution, being first duly sworn, testified
as follows: | o .

DIRECT ZXAMINATION _

MR FREDERICKS: State your name. A George N. Lockwoodg

Q May I heave that certificate thatvas filed showing t
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drawing of Mr Lockwood? What is your name? A éeonge .
LookWOod. |
Q Where do you live, Mr Lockwdod? A Near Covina;
Q@ Here in the county of Los Angeles, state of Califor-
nia? A Yes sir.
R  Vhere did you live prior to that;time? A 1350 HWewton
street, for 5 or 6 years in this city. | |
R Here in Los Angeles? A Yes sir.
Q  Vhen did you leave 1315 Newtonstreet here in Los
Allgeles? ‘A In August - it will be two years coming
Avgust.
Q@ Moved out to Covina? A Yes sir, or within four miles o
Covina.
Q How long have you lived here in Los Angeles County,
Mr.Lockwood? A  About 44 years.

!

Q@ And what generally, has been your occupation? A Well,
\i have been a farmer part of the time, and part of the time
I vas on the police force. Part of the time I was deputy
sheriff; city employe, and so on. |
About how old are ybu? A About 64, past.

And you are living out near Covina? A Yes sir.
Wﬁat is your business out there? A Farming.
That is your home? Fave your home out there? A Yes si

How far from El Monte do you live? A Avout 6 miles.

Fast? A East and a t rifle northe.

Do you lmow Bert Franklin? A Yes sir.
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Q  How long have you knovn Bert Franklin? A I should
i?hink a dozen years or such a matter. | _

Q You ever have any association with him infbusiness way ?
A Ve both worked in the Sheriff's office under Bill Vhite
when he was‘ sheriff,

Q As deputies? A Yesg,

Do you remember where youwere living last November?

Yes sir.

The same place, out on the ranch? A Yes sir.

o o P o

Do you remember of meeting Bert Franklin in November
- L

the first time? A veg gir.
\'-_-\\___,

Where? A At my home in theevening.
A'nd do you remember the day when you first met hime.

It was the 4th day of Névember.

19112 A 191l. T

D P oD

Q Feior to that time -- prior to the 4th day of Novem-
\ber, 1911, how long had it been since you had met Bert
Franklin? A I don't think I had met him within a year.

e e e gt P B VA e AR AT

I think it had been a year since.I had seen him, until
that night. |

Q At .;,he time and prior to that time -- I vwithdraw
that question. Are youacquainted with District Attorney
J. D, Fredericks, myself? A VYes sir..

Q Prior to the time when you met Bert Frenklin, how
long hed it been since you had met me, approximately?

MR BROGERS: I think that is immaterial. Your Hono:q
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please, I'object to it on that sround. ‘
THE COUBT: I suppose coungel intends to connect it up.
MR FORD: Relations of the parties.

THE COUHR: Overruled. |

A I would say it was several months anyway, before that.

TR F REDERICKS: Now, what time of day or night was it that

vy ou met Franklin on the 4th of November? A TWell, itwves

+in the eveﬁing, just the hour I couldn't saye. I had gone

to bed and was asle_ep when he rapped on the door.

" ¥R ROGERS: Now, just a moment. The relation of the inci-
dents oi‘ that occasion, I suggest, ought to come in res-
ponse 'to a question which will present the point. 'lh_is
‘angwer is not now going to be 'zesponsive from this one.

R FREDERICKS: Oh, I think so. I think he has concluded
the answer.
THE COURT: HBad you finished the answer?
MR FREDERICKS: Read the question.

(Last question and answer read by the reporter.)
R FREDERICKS: Vhat occurred at that time? I presume
coursel wants to obj ect to Xhemrg your saying what was sgid
at that time and I will ask you' tmt question later, but

just what did you do when he rapped on the dor?
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A After my wife woke me up and told me some one --

MR ROGERS:V T object to that as hearsgy. Not harmfully so,
of course, '
TH® COURT: Yes sir,

A T went to the door.'

MR FRFDFRICKS: All right, and was he alone” A T think therxe
was someone in the automobile, but who T don't know,

Q  Your house is back a little ways from the road?

A Yes sir.

Q About how far? A T should think in the neighborhood of
one hundred feet.

Q Anything intervening between you and the road?

'

A Not from where I stood, except some palm treeé that were
not very high.

Q Now you had a conversation,'did you,with »r Franklin
there at the door, at that time? A Yes sir. ’

Q _State vhat that conversation was.‘ Just wait until counsgl
makes objection, | |
MR ROGTRS: That is objected to as incompetent, irfelevant
and immaterial, and hearsay and no foundation laid.

MR FORD: We avow our intention to connect Franklin with the
defendant, Mr Darrow, Tt is part of the res gestae; things
that are done.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR ROGFRS: TException,

A e told me that he wanted to have a conversation with
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and T said to him, "It is late,there is no lights“~; T didn't
light no light when T went out -- "and T am awful tired ", )
He said that he would l1ike to see me in his office in Los
Angeles,and T told him_that T would be going to lLos Angeles
between that time énd the following Wednesday,and fhat T woul
call on him; and he géve me his office address; bid me good
night, and went on, and T went back to hed,

Q He gave you that address, just as a card”

MR ROGFTRS: T wouldn't lead him._

MR FREDTRICKS: Tt is almost immaterial, How did he give you
the office address? A T think he just told me the number
of his room,in the Chamber of Commerce building,

Q At that time did you know that your name was in the jury

wheel of Los Angeles county? A No,T supposed so, but didn't

know it.

Q Vas anything said that night about jury® A Not a word,
Q Now let'!s see; do yod remember Whét day of the wekk that
was? A That was Saturday.

Q  Saturday the 4th of November? A 4th day of November,

Q At night., Have you related all the conversation that .yo

can remember? A All that occurred that night.

Q MHow long was he there® A Oh,7 don't think it was over

four or five minutes, ‘ L
/_.\ et

Q Do you know from your owm obéervations, whether anyone .

was out in the machine, in the automobile? A T think T sa®

someone there., Probably the man that runs it,
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1|qQ You think you saw someone? A Yes sir.

2 | MR ROGTRS: Vhat was the last part of it. (Last part of

3 | answer read by the reporter.)

4 | VMR FREDTRICKS: At any rate,you don't know who it was?

5(A YNo,T don't know who it was.

6| q Didn't have any conversation with anyone else°‘ A Yo,

7 | MR ROGERS: We move to strike out the conversation, in order

8 | to preserve our rights. |

9 MR FORD: Merely preiiminary.

10. VR ROGWRS: Upon the ground it is hearsay,and incompetent;
11 | no foundation has been laid for it. Tt is immaterial,

12 | TH® COURT: Under the District Attorney's statement that he

13 | intends to connect it up with the defendant here, the motion

14 | will be denied,

15 | MR FRED'RICKS: Now, when was the next time you met Bert

16 Franklin? A The following week,on the 9th day of the month

17 | at his -office,

/Q Before T come to that -- prior to that meeting with Bert

18

19<\ETanklih,had you ever discussed jury duty in the McNamara

20 | case with anybody at all, so far as you know? A No sir,

21 | MR ROGTRS: Vhat is that question. (Last question and answer
22 | read by the reporter,) |

23 | MR TREDERICKS: Wow, coming down, vwhen was the next time you
24 | met Bert Franklin® A On the 9th day of November,

25| o The 9th day of November, You know what day of the weg

k

26 | that was® A Yes sir, T hink it was Thursday.

—————,

Q Thursday, the year 1911° A Yes siT.  gunedby ooonuBRARY
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Q And where? A. At his office in the Chamber of Commerce
building,

Q Los Angeles? A Yes sir.

Q - You remember the time in the day? A VWhy,it was to be
10 otclock, T think it was about 15 minutes past 10,

Q VWhat did you mean, it was to be 10 o'clock” 'Agigg asked
me -- when T said that was all the conversation -- he asked
me to write him a letter stating the day T would be in,

In place of doing that I cameto town on the evening of the
8th, and called him up at his home, ¢+ .. on the telephone,
and told him that T was in town and would be at his office
the next morning, and he suggested 10 otclock. T believe he
suggested 9,first, and ¥ saidlI couldn't get there, and then

he suggested 10, Tt was probably a quarter past when T reaches

-

ed there, that is the way it came to be that timeii
Q Well, on the telephone conversatlion then, was there any
other conversation® A Not a word,

Q That is all? A That is all,
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R ROGERS: I move to strike it out, not being eble to ob-
ject to it, on the ground it is hearsay, incompetent and |
no foundation laid. _
MR FREDERICKS: The same propqsition, I presmne.
THE COURT:  OVerruled. | |
MR ROGERS: Exceptign.‘

" MR FREDERICKS: Now, when you called at his office on the

10th,-- on the 9th at 10 o'clock,rﬂappmximately, who &as
in the office, do you remember? A No one but himself.

Q@ Now, MTr Lockwood, state what wassaid between you,

and as near as possible in the order in which it was said.
MR ROGERS: I object to tmat as hearsay and incompetent; no
foundation laid for it, it appearing from the statement of
the witness, timt there was no one present except himself
and Franklin, =nd 'naturally ¥r Darrow cannot be bound by
any statements made by other persons outside of the pre-
sence and hearing -- the rule -- a very ancient rule, that
the declarations of a person: outside of his presence and
hearing, do not bind him, snd he is not to be -~ his
liberty is not to be jebpardiéed by them, except upon
showing and his authorizafion.

¥R FREDERICKS: Also a very wmcient rule, grew inexistence
gbout the same time, that the statements of an accomplice
in furtherance of a conspiracy, were admissible against

all members of the conspiracye.

MR ROGERS: The conspiracy first being showne.
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MR FREDERICKS: 'Not necessary first in order of proof. Ve
will show that. '
MR FORD: The cpnspiracy must be shown before the jury

can consider it.

THE COURT: The District Attorney makes the seame avowal as
to thé offér of this testimony he did a moment ago.

MR APPEL: Suppose they fail to show thmat by proper evi-
dences ‘

MR FREDERICKS: We will show it by proper evidence.

THE COURT: If they fail, why, that condition will be met

when the time comes., The District Attorney can only prove

‘ one part of higscase at a time. Overruled.

MR ROGERS: Rxception.
(Last mestion read by the reporter.) pd
A Well, we shook hands, and he invited me to a seat, and
I think his first remark was, that he would like to have me
as one of the jurors in the McNamara case; znd I replied to
him at once, that I thought possibly he was taking the ex-
act method of prevenﬁing me from b_eiing a juror in that case,
and he said he didn't think so. | fnd then he asgked me‘the
question, "Can I talk with you sbout tmt case?" I said,
"Yeg sir." He then emarked that both himself and my self
had -- | X
MR FORD: Pardon me-just a m‘oment for int errupting. Bet- -
ter state it in the language. A [ "Had gone élong through

life until we had aged perceptibly without properly
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/MR FREDERICKS: Yes, [A I agked him how that could be.
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our heads;" and that he thought it was time we both ought
to do that in order toacquire sufficient for our wants in
our old =xge, and that for that reason he had sent for me to
Atell me this, and he remarked that there was $2000 in it
for me, if I would =t as a juror on that case. ~

MR ROGERS: That is all Franklin's statement? A Yes.,

o

'

Well, he said he was to work for thedefense, and had the
handling of the -- looking after the jury, part of it, and
that he could assure me " ‘j that money' and that possibly
he could make if #2500; if he could he would, if I would
accept the proposition. He then went into quite =z discus-
sion of the case, and. its different points in regard ==L
Q@ Just give that discussion &8 near as you can remember

it.
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A As near as I remember, he said he had not the élightest
doubt but what if T was a juror in that case and heard the
evidence, that, without anyone'suggesting it, or any induce-
ment whatever, other than hearing the testimony, that T

would,of my dwn free will and accord, from the testimony,
not

bring in a verdict of/guilty. We sald, "There was absolutely

no evidence against the McNamaras, except such as had been
manufactured, and the reason of him offering me that was his
friendkhip for me, and my age," and so on, and it being in
his power to do it, T asked him how it could be paid®?
Well,he said, "T will give you personally $500 before you

enter the jury box at all, and as soon as you are an accepted

juror we will place the balance in some one's hands that will

be acceptable to you, where it will be perfectly sdfe,
pending the outcome of the case.," I asked him specifically,
what he wanted me to do in case T accepted the proposition,
Yhy, he said, "Of course, a verdict of.not guilty -- vote not
guilgy. I;told nim T didn't see how that matter couldbe
arranged 80 that it would be safe for the man that would
accept it to get his money. ¥e said it could be déne all
right! "As T say, he mentioned different names -- or at leas]
one name, as a proper custodian for the holding of the money
that would be left pending the verdict, I told him that I
would want to consiaer thé proposition a 1little bit; that it

was a complete surprise to me,that anything of'the'xind was

Tt

being done. wWe said,all right, '"How long do you want to
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consider it?" oh, T said, "until Saturday" He asked me if
T would come to his office again., T told him,no,T didn't
think T would be there againl Well, he ;;id,wz;m;ill>come
out to your house", T said,” "All right, come out®".
¥e said, "T will come out in the evening, " "1l right",

T big him good by there and went out of his office,’ <.

MR ROGFRS: T move to strike out the conversation,as heérsay,
and incompetent, That it discloses that Mr Darrow was not
present and he cannot be bound by hearsay conversations of
other persons than himself, and the mere avowal of the Dis-
trict Attorney, that he will connect the testimony, is taking
it out of order, and incompetent and no foundation has been
laid.

THE COURT: Overruled,

MR ROGFRS: Txception, A I would like to say there was
further conversation we had, slipped my mind, temporarily,
thét T recall now,

MR FREDFRTICKS: Give it, and it may go in as though it had
been objected to and ruled on, as far as we are concerned.
Go ahead. |

MR ROGFRS: The same objection, applies,
TH® COURT: Yes,

MR FRADPRICKS: We stipulate. o
A He told me that.he had already one juror there that was

fixed and that T knew that juror better than I did him,
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MR ROGERS: T move to strike out that statement upon the
ground that it is heafsayvahd incompetént and irrelevant,
and immaterial and no foundation has been laid, and it does
not apply to this case, and even under the theory of counsel,
that the declarations of one of the so-called conspirators
are admissible, as against the othersin the conspiracy,
it is only declarations with reference to that particular
matter that are admissible, All hearsay testimony is not
well regarded by the court, as your ¥Wonor observes, in order
to take any evidence out of the objection that it is hearsay,
bearing in mind the unwisdom of admitting anything that
savors of hearsay, the law, in making exception, is particu-
lar to specify what those exceptions shall be, One of those
is, of course, the statement that vhere the conspifacy has
been shown or‘declarations of one may bind others in the
pursuit or in the object under the necessities of that con-
gspiracy and matters outstide of that cannot be adduced,
I merely wish go make my objection upon the grounds stafed;
of courée, thggsi;uch.be said by way of law, upon the subject,
Tt is elementary law that a recital by one conspirator of
past events, which has been, do not come within the excep-
tion in any eventl
MR FORD: 1If the'Court please, we have a brief upon the rule
if we are going to &iscuss conspiracy at all, Tf the juror

recigzed something that occurred in reference spécificallywtq

the alleged bribery or attempted bribery of this particul

juror, and the conversations introduced for that, purpoge
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merely verbal acts, they are all acts, verbal acts)for that
purpose, and'not hearsay, Counsel does not 6orrectly state
the law, however, with regard to conspiracy, Brerything
done or said in furtherance of a conspiracy and during the
continuance of the conspiracy is admissible; that is the
correct statement,

M APPEL: Your Honor, to illustrate that proposition, -=-

MR FORD: T will introduce five hundred authorities on that.

Suppose, your HOnor, thé defendant was on the stand himself,
and he was asked concerning past transactions, not connected
with the case at issue here, he wouldn't be allowed to tes-
tify to that under objection, Now; suppose that his co~-
conspirator is on the stand, and he undertook to say, when
testifying concerning this case, that they had committed
another crime, Now, all the decisions are that it would be
error to admit that kind of evidence.‘ Tlow much more error
would it be\if a co-conspirator tells a third person, not in
the preSence of the defendant® Now, there are cases gquarely
in point on that.

YR FREDFRICKS: Counsel loses the one point, huwever, That

L)

the statement of Mr Franklin was in furtherance of his effort
to get wr Lockwood to accept this bribe by saying to him,
and he used it as aﬁ inducement -- stating to him that

another juror, whom he knew, had accepted a bribe, so, that

it was really part of the inducement to this juror -- to
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this witness, Wis statement that the other juror had been

bribed, ,

MR APPEL: That might have been used as against Franklin,

himself, but it cannot be used against Mr Darrow,

THE COURT: Tt seems to me,gentlemen, that this question

brings us pretty close, at deast, to some of the very

interesting legal propositibns that have to be settled in

this law suit, It is almost adjourning time,-~- I dontt want
500 authorities from either side, but if you have one or two

leading cases on each side, bearing on the subject that I can
read between now and the time court convenes on Monday, T

will be glad to avail myself of it and save your time and
the Courtt!s time,

MR FORD: T will send your ¥Wonor a list of them immediately.

¥R ROGFRS: So will I,

TH® COURT: And perhaps that being dqne we can get at thié

matter very quickly, and take up the thread vhere we now leay

off, at 1;30 Monday afternoon, Ts there anyone here who can
not be here at 1:307

MR FORD: T want to call your Honor's attention to People

vs Rodley, 131,Cal,;People vs Rueff, in the l4th Appellate,;
State vs Collins, 64 Cal,,298; Abbotts Criminal Brief 547,
page 315, That is the best Criminal prief or work of its
nature that I am aequainted with, and of Section 547 page
315,wbll appear a list of authorities in support of that _

proposition which T will not bother the Court with,
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MR ROGERS: T differ with counsel about the authority -

of Abbotts Trial Brief, Tt is not regarded as an authority
and is never cited by Courts,

THR COURT: Did you say in the Rueff case there has bheen a
re-hearing granted in that case?

MR ROGFRS: In the Rueff case there was a re-hearing granted,
by the Court unanimously, and thereupon the Attorney general
called attention to the fact that they had no jurisdiction
to grant the re-hearing because of the lapse of time,

Judge Henshaw being absent from the state at the time,

THE COHRT: T remember the circumstances very well,

MR ROGERS: You remember the circumstances very well,

THE COURT: So it stands nowﬂthat there was no re-hearing
sranted®

MR RNGFRS: There vas a re-hearing granted, upon the merits
of the decision itself,-as a rule of law.

MR FRED"RICKS: There were about 5,000,000 different points
involved,

VR FORD: Ve submit it as an opinion of the Appellate Court
on that subject.

THE COURT: T will read the case between now and 1.3C Monday,
Mr Rogers, have you anything you want to hand me ,other than
the document that you let me have yesterday at my request?

MR ROGFRS: 15&6th Cal., and T will send up a list of cases

in other 'states, There are some very excellent decisions
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mitted there. That is not, however, conspiracy, but other

THF COURT: Gentlemen of the jury, we will take a recess noy

143
THT COURT: 7T wont undertake to read decisions oﬁtside of

this state, between now and Yonday.

>

MR ROGERS: T call your Honor's attention to the youillineau

case,
MR FORD: Vhen your Wonor is looking at the Moulllineaux
case T would suggest the 62nd L,A.R. That is an excellent
note on the case.

YR ROGERS: That is a week!'s work to read that case alone,

MR FORD: Well,we are satisfied with the authorities sub-

offenses. We are making a statement here in regard to con-

spiracy. That is outside of the Moulllineaux case.

until 1:30 o'clock Monday afternoon, “fay 27th, 1912,

- - - o
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